ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 2, 2004
8:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 422

"An Act repealing the special subaccount established in the
constitutional budget reserve fund; relating to the powers of
the Departnent of Revenue for the investnent of anounts in the
constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 466
"An Act relating to investnments of Al aska permanent fund assets;
and providing for an effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD
HOUSE BI LL NO. 423
"An Act relating to accidents involving the vehicle of a person
under the influence of an alcoholic beverage; and providing for
an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C SAFETY

- CANCELLED

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 2, 2004



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 422
SHORT TI TLE: BUDGET RESERVE FUND | NVESTNMENT
SPONSOR(S):  FI NANCE

02/ 02/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 10/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 10/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 26/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 26/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 26/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 02/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 466

SHORT TI TLE: PERVMANENT FUND | NVESTMENTS
SPONSCR(S) : RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG BUDGET & AUDI T

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H STA, FIN

02/ 26/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

02/ 26/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 02/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 423
SHORT TI TLE: TAXI CAB DRI VER LI ABI LI TY
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) ANDERSON

02/ 02/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 04 (H JUuD

02/ 02/ 04 (H STA REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
02/ 09/ 04 (H REFERRAL ORDER CHANGED

02/ 09/ 04 (H STA, JUD

02/ 10/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

02/ 10/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

03/ 02/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

TOVAS H BOUTIN, Deputy Comm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behalf of
departnent during the hearing on HB 422.

t he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 2, 2004



JAMES ARMSTRONG St af f

to Representative Bill WIIlians

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the House Finance
Comm ttee, sponsor.

ROBERT D. STORER, Executive Director

Al aska Per manent Fund Cor poration (APFC)

Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the departnent
during the hearing on HB 466.

RONALD W LORENSEN, Attorney at Law

Si mpson, Tillinghast, Sorensen & Longenbaugh, P.C.

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the changes sought in HB 466.

JIMSH NE JR, Staff

to Representative Tom Anderson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Present ed HB 423 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Anderson, sponsor.

DARW N Bl VER, Board Menber

Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers Association

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in support of HB 423 and answered
questions fromthe commttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-25, SIDE A

Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Represent ati ves
Weyhrauch, Holm Seaton, and Lynn were present at the call to
order. Representatives Coghill, Berkowitz, and G uenberg

arrived while the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 422- BUDGET RESERVE FUND | NVESTMENT

Nunmber 0060

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 2, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 422, "An Act repealing the special subaccount
established in the constitutional budget reserve fund; relating
to the powers of the Departnent of Revenue for the investnent of
anounts in the constitutional budget reserve fund; and providing
for an effective date."

TOVAS H. BOUTI N, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Revenue, stated he would address the
four questions about HB 422 that Representative Berkow tz had
emailed to the Departnent of Revenue. The first question that
he addressed related to the current and projected returns for
the Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund (CBRF), and the returns
for the subaccount that HB 422 would be elimnating. M. Boutin
stated that the Departnent of Revenue wusually doesn't get
together and meke projections for the funds. He pointed out
that the Departnment of Revenue does nake projections on returns
for the general fund and the CBRF in the Revenue Sources Book.
He said the last tinme that the Departnment of Revenue did an
official projection on the CBRF was for the Fall 2003 Revenue
Sour ces Book. Citing the information on page 7 of the Revenue
Sources Book, M. Boutin stated that the three-year return on
the subaccount has been 1.8 percent and has shown "textbook
volatility," which can be expected from an account that has
hi gher ri sk. He stated that the three-year annualized report
for the CBRF showed that the account had a 5.9 percent return.

Number 0260

MR. BQUTIN addressed the question regarding when the [CBRF]
account would be conpletely "down" and require entry into the
subaccount . He noted that the [2003] fall revenue forecast
shows the entire CBRF running out in My 2007. M. Boutin
explained that Conm ssioner [WIIliam Corbus had nade a
presentation recently in Fairbanks on [the status of] the entire
CBRF. M. Boutin stated that the departnent prepared the
handout for that presentation and that he had sonme copies
avai |l abl e. He noted that [the one-page handout included in the
commttee packet, which shows two CBR subaccount graphs]
explained in detail how the CBRF is forecasted today to "run
down. "

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH stated that the annual return rate for the

subaccount cited in the annual report 2003 seened aberrant and
he asked why that was.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 2, 2004



MR. BOUTIN stated that equities had really taken off recently,
which is reflected in the rate. He cited the subaccount graphs
in the packet and noted that the subaccount went below the

initial investnment shortly after its inception and has just
recently recovered and risen above the initial $400 mllion
i nvest nment .
Nunber 0412

MR. BOQUTI N addressed another question, regarding the anount of
noney that the Department of Revenue felt was prudent to require
as a mnimm balance for the CBRF, and how they derived that
bal ance. He stated that the nunber the adm nistration is using

is a $1-billion mnimm bal ance. He explained that $400 nmllion
is required just for cash flow purposes, and the other $600
mllion is a result of the price volatility of oil. He said

that the Ofice of Mnagenent & Budget (OVB) decided on the
$600-m | lion figure.

Nunmber 0506

MR. BOUTIN addressed the final question previously subnmtted by
Representative Berkowitz, relating to the state's bond rating
and how it would be affected by the passage of HB 422. He said
that the transfer of funds from the subaccount to the CBRF woul d
have no inpact on the bond rating, especially since this
particular nove would have the entire fund at a fixed inconeg,
whi ch suggests nore liquidity. He said that he talked wth
"governnment finance associates" and asked them about the credit
rating inplications that HB 422 would carry with it. He said
that governnment finance associates didn't see any inpact on the
state's bond rating.

Nunmber 0646

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked for further clarification on the
$1-billion figure that the admnistration was wusing as the
m ni nrum anmount needed for the CBRF. He said that he had been to
the Conference of Al askans and he saw no direct relationship

illustrated between the $1-billion figure and anything else. He
stated that at the Fiscal Policy Caucus, it seemed that it was
det erm ned t hat $1.5 billion was a better nunber

Representative Berkowtz said that sone people want to link the
m ni nrum bal ance in the CBRF to general fund spending, so there
would be a cushion that is rationally related to the state's
expendi t ures.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 2, 2004



Nunber 0702

MR. BOUTIN explained that where there was a zero aggregate draw
from the CBRF throughout the year, there would still be a need
for $400 million for cash flow purposes. He expl ai ned further
that early on in the fiscal year, the state borrows from the
CBRF to pay for fire suppression and federal projects. He added
that when the state is reinbursed by the federal government, it
then replenishes the noney borrowed. He said that this is a
typical year, except for the recent oil prices, and $100 million
was just reinvested in the CBRF, and there is expected to be
another $100-million deposit nmade into the CBRF this fiscal
year.

MR. BOUTIN referred to [the second page - entitled, "GCeneral
Fund Cash Sufficiency Wth CBRF Borrowi ng” - of a seven-page
handout included in the commttee packet], which he said was
prepared for the Conference of Al askans by the Departnent of

Revenue. He used that graph to illustrate how the account is
drawn from and repl enished and why the need for a $400-nmillion
bal ance for cash flow purposes is a reasonable nunber. He

further explained that the OVB came up with the $600-mllion
figure by assessing the 80 percent confidence level for oil
price volatility. He said that it determined that a $600-
mllion balance was necessary to account for a one-year change
in oil prices and the tine necessary for the legislature to deal
with an oil price shock. He said that these factors were the
reasons the $1-billion mininmm was set, adding that it wasn't
| inear programm ng or operations research, just pretty sinple
cal cul us that established that numnber.

Number 0951

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there were any statistics
pertaining to the performance of the CBRF or the subaccounts for
the current year.

MR. BQUTIN indicated that the nbst current figures that he has
are found in the graph with the end date of Decenber 31, 2003.
He stated that the subaccount had earned a 19.17 percent profit
for that year.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if M. Boutin had the current
bal ances of each account.

MR BOUTIN said that he didn't have that information with him

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 2, 2004



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if the WMy 2007 projections nentioned
earlier would be extended, since the account has been getting
such a high return.

Number 1041

MR. BQUTIN estimated that in the upcomng spring forecast, the
rates will look better than the fall forecast, unless there was
a drastic plumet in oil prices. He said that he didn't want to
"forecast a forecast,” but he felt that because of that, the My
2007, depletion forecast could potentially be pushed back a
little. He pointed out that the depletion date wasn't that
sensitive to earnings on the CBRF, stating that it is sensitive
to expenditures versus revenues.

Number 1112

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there were going to be any additional
fees for managenent of this noney.

MR. BOUTIN responded that the Departnent of Revenue manages
about $18 billion, nobst of which is pension funds. He stated
that they nmanage $6 billion of fixed incone "in house." He said
that other types of investnents, real estate, private equity,
and equity are managed by external sources. He said that the
Department of Revenue will save $125,000 by noving this account
to a fixed incone account and keeping it "in house”

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if the Departnent of Revenue would need to
add nore enpl oyees to manage the | arger anmount of noney.

MR. BOUTIN stated that the Departnent of Revenue, Treasury
Division, has recently becone the student |oan noney nmanager
[for the state] and has |ooked to add a fixed incone analyst
position because of that.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH explained that he had inquired about hiring
addi tional staff because, based on his experience, usually when
a bill is passed that takes thousands of dollars to manage there
is a need to hire nore people. Chair Wyhrauch said that he
wanted clarification that that wouldn't be the case, although
the Departnment of Revenue would be dealing with mllions of
dol | ars.

Nunber 1224

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented on what he felt was an
underlying concern from the conmittee, stating he feels that
because the rate of return was so high this last fiscal year,
the commttee is attenpting to be "market tiners" and assune
that it wll continue to do as well. He stated that they
weren't in a position to do that.

MR. BQUTI N agreed and said, "W are not market tiners.”
Number 1289

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked for clarification about the statenent
M. Boutin nmade earlier regarding the cash flow needing to be
$400 mllion and the OVMB needing $600 [mllion]. Citing [the
fourth page of the previously nentioned] packet prepared for the
Conference  of Al askans by the Departnent of Revenue,
Representative Hol m asked why the figures represented there were
different - $700 million fromthe OVMB and $300 nillion for cash
fl ow. He stated that he didn't see a reason that the $400-
mllion figure was needed. Representative Holm backed this
point up further by noting pages 10 and 11, of the sane
docunent, seened to show that the balance never falls nore than
$150 nmillion below zero. He asked why the Departnent of Revenue
sought $400 million for cash flow purposes, when the information
presented doesn't support that.

MR. BQUTIN responded that he didn't feel that there was a true

science to forecasting the narket. He said that if sonmeone was
going to argue that $1 billion wasn't the right mninmm bal ance
amount, but $900 million or $1.1 billion is instead, he doubted

that there would be that much of an argunent from the Departnent
of Revenue.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked, "So its not that critical of a nunber
t hen?"

MR. BOUTIN responded that it was critical to have a balance; if
there was no balance it would effect the credit rating that
Representative Berkowitz was inquiring about in earlier
testi nony. He said that he didn't think that a transfer |ike
the one that is suggested in HB 422 would effect the credit
rating, stating that the credit rating agencies are nuch easier
to predict than oil volatility.

Nunber 1443

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 2, 2004



CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked if June 30, 2004, should be the effective
date of HB 422.

MR. BQUTIN responded that because the Departnent of Revenue
doesn't have the nanagenent fees for the subaccount in the
budget for fiscal year 2005, the sooner that HB 422 can becone
effective, the better. He stated that the way a fund is run,
the noney is tapered out of the fund; therefore, it wll take
sone tinme and there wll probably be sonme costs absorbed in
fiscal year 2005. Those costs will increase the |onger HB 422
is not in effect.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if HB 422 should have an immedi ate
effecti ve date.

MR. BOUTIN stated that if HB 422 had an imediate effective
date, it would give the Departnent of Revenue nore flexibility.
He stated that flexibility is always a good thing when managi ng
noney.

Nunber 1510

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if having the title read: "An Act
repealing the special subaccount wunder the authority of the
Constitutional Budget Reserve Fund." would be nore appropriate
than the current title, since the subaccount is not created in
the fund as a constitutional matter.

MR BQUTIN said that he hadn't |ooked at the title from that

perspective, but that Chair Wyhrauch was correct. He added
that, during the last hearing on HB 422, Chair Wyhrauch asked
if the effect needed could be done as an executive order. He

stated that he had spoken with Jim Baldwin, the Assistant
Attorney GCeneral, and M. Baldwin answered that this wasn't an
executive branch managenent issue, but a fund established by
| aw, so a change in statute was necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ asked if M. Boutin was aware of any
anal ysis that has been done that would project what would occur
if the bulk of the CBRF was deposited into the Permanent Fund.
Number 1640

MR. BOQUTIN said he wasn't aware of any analysis done on that
matt er.

Nunmber 1652

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if it would give the Departnent
of Revenue the flexibility it needed if the |egislature granted
the departnent the authority to access the subaccount, w thout
repeal i ng AS 37.10.430, subsection (c).

Nunber 1756

MR. BOUTIN stated that the Departnent of Revenue's notivation
was based on the fact that the CBRF was regularly being drawn
from which doesn't suggest to the Department of Revenue that
the noney should be invested in any other account than fixed
i ncone. He stated that although the subaccount is earning a
higher rate at this tinme, the Departnent of Revenue is not a
market tinmer, and so, based on the use of the fund, it nmakes
nore sense to have that noney in a fixed account. He used the
exanple that the CBRF would never be invested in real estate
because the fund isn't being used in that way. He said that the
Department of Revenue currently has long-term investnents, but
he doesn't see the CBRF as a fund where long-term investnents
are appropri ate.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that M. Boutin's logic was
flawess, if the Departnent of Revenue proceeds from that
prem se. He said that if the departnent maintains the prem se
that they try to nmaintain a balance in the CBRF, the reasoning
is flawed. He stated that by keeping the statute on the books
but granting the Departnment of Revenue access to the noney, it
woul d give the Departnent of Revenue the flexibility it needed.
He stated that he thought the statute should exist if there were
policy changes in the future.

Number 1925

MR. BQUTIN replied that regardless of the balance in the CBRF,
the fact that there are drawdowns from the account suggests that
it has to have high liquidity, and HB 422 allows for that
liquidity.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said that he feels that it would be in
the Departnment of Revenue's best interest to nmaintain the
flexibility of having the subaccount there, but having access to
it, rather than elimnating it. He asked M. Boutin why the
Department of Revenue felt it was necessary to foreclose the
subaccount and elimnate the ability for the departnent of
Revenue to make discretionary decisions.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 2, 2004



MR. BOUTIN said that he didn't see the utility in nmaintaining
t he subaccount, based on the way the fund is used. He said that
he felt that it was better to invest the CBRF in a manner that
is appropriate to how [the state] uses it. He stated that if,
in the future, the CBRF is used differently, it will be another
i ssue; however, that doesn't seem to be on the horizon right
NOW.

Nunber 2117

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ commented on the statenents made about
the need for the CBRF based on the cash flow inequalities

t hroughout the fiscal year. He said he felt that there wouldn't
be a cash flow problem if there was a balanced fiscal regine.
He followed up that comment by illustrating the three cases that

could cone about, involving the CBRF. He stated that the first
case would be where the CBRF has a lot of nobney and the

subaccount woul d prove useful. The second case would be where
there is a $1-billion CBRF and the noney needed for cash flow
purposes is covered by the $1-billion m ninum The third case
woul d be where the CBRF was approaching zero and the assets in
the subaccount would be 1iquidated. He then asked why this
| egi sl ati on needed to be introduced at all, since the Departnent

of Revenue was going to manage the entire CBRF in the best
interest [of the state] given the constraints at the tine.

Number 2210

MR BOUTI N responded that, like a private conpany, t he
Department of Revenue has a need for cash. He stated that the
cash inflows and outflows are not balanced, so cash needs to be
avai lable [to cover that inbal ance]. He clarified that the $1-
billion mninmm would include the subaccount, and he said that

in order to account for the cash flow and the price shocks, that
noney should be readily available in fixed incone, rather than
in real estate or equities, for exanple.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that it wouldn't be prudent for
t he Departnment of Revenue to manage the fund in liquid assets if
the fund was going to be drawn from He voiced his opinion that
repealing this statute [as proposed by HB 422] would have no
bearing on how the Departnent of Revenue nanages the fund. He
added that the statute exists for direction of the fund during
flusher tines.

Nunber 2324

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to Section 3 of the bill. He
asked if [the departnent] would need statutory authority in
order to transfer sonme of the nmoney out of the fund, or whether
that authority would be inherent.

MR. BOUTIN responded that when |anguage has been carefully
drafted by attorneys, he should not attenpt to try to change it
on the spot. He added that he is not certain what problem
Representative Guenberg is addressing and he would want to read
the |anguage and consider if "it does the sane thing under all
ci rcunst ances. "

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that the bill will have further
consideration in the House Fi nance Committ ee.

Number 2435

JAMES ARMSTRONG, Staff to Representative Bill WIlIlians, Al aska
State Legislature, testified on behalf of the House Finance
Comm ttee, sponsor, which 1is <co-chaired by Representative
WIIlians. M. Arnmstrong suggested having a trigger nechanism
that would "coll apse” the subaccount into the nmain account when
the main account falls below a certain nunmber, such as "$300
mllion for cash flow purposes.” He observed, "I nean, if the
stock market does 10 percent the next four years, it could nake
$160 mllion."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH sai d that seenms to conflict with what M. Boutin
previously indicated, regarding the need to work wth noney
managers and the efficiencies that nay be inherent in the
ability to give notice and react to the state's fisca
si tuation. He stated that if this were contained in a |onger-
term investnment portfolio, then there certainly wouldn't be the
flexibility that M. Boutin and the state is |ooking towards.
He mentioned a trigger nmechanismthat could happen in an instant
in a catastrophic nmarket situation.

Number 2505

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded that the trigger nechanismis
t here. He explained that if prudence dictates that the fund be
drawn to zero, then it will be drawn to zero. |If, in the course
of drawing it to zero, the assets of the subaccount have to be
| i qui dated, then that's what is going to happen. He reiterated
that he does not see the need for HB 422. He expressed his
opinion that this proposed legislation signals a pessimsm on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 2, 2004



the part of the admnistration about its ability to solve the
fiscal gap.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH responded that he doesn't think it signals that

at all. For example, he said, if there is a five-year
investnment portfolio wth a penalty for early wthdrawal, it
does the <citizens and the CBR no good to use the early
wi thdrawal to pay a penalty. He noted that the statute was
passed during flush tinmes and a long bull market. He i ndi cated

that any pessimsmis not reflective of the adm nistration but
is reflective of reality.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ di sagr eed. He stated that the reality
of the situation is that [the legislature] is going to solve the

fiscal gap one way or the other. He said that the current
adm nistration has said that it wants a $1-billion mninum in
t he CBR He stated that if the admnistration wants that
mnimum - an anount that he said he thinks is too low - then
there is no need to invade the subaccount. Furthernmore, if the
subaccount is not invaded, then it should be invested in a way
that prudence dictates. Representative Berkowtz clarified as
foll ows:

In a lot of ways, all this subaccount does - and | was

there for the debate - [is it] authorizes prudent
investnment rather than sinple liquidity. That' s what
the change inherent in the subaccount is. And ... it

just seens to nme that if there's a need to invade the
principle of the subaccount, that's what's going to

happen. And they don't need the authority that's
inherent in repeal of a statute. But they need
the existence of the statute for flusher tinmes, in

order to authorize better yielding investnents.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said a |lot of people have discussed how to

cushion the budget. He said, "It's case by case, person by
person."
Number 2643

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d:

If we're talking about a five-year investnment horizon
for this account, [and] we | ook back at the last three
years' average return of 1.8 percent, | don't care how
good one year was in that horizon, that has not been a
good investnent for us conpared to what they've done

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- March 2, 2004



with the regular fund. So, we can pick a year and
say, "Oh, it was great - 10.2 percent in one year, "
but when you look at the three-year annualized, it's
terrible. And so, why [would we] say, "Do we want to
mai ntain that investnent?" It's supposed to be in
hi gher yield, which would nmean higher risk generally;
especially it's higher risk if you're saying that at
sonme point during that time, prudent investing is
going to nean you have to liquidate sonme of it when
it's not the appropriate tine.

So, it seens to ne that we have our prudent investor
here from [the] Departnment of Revenue, that manages
the retirement accounts and everything else, saying
that with the direction that the CBR is used [and]
with the projections of what the CBR is going to there
for, it's easier -- we're listening to our investors
saying its not prudent to have this subaccount
invested in longer-term strategy, because no | onger
are we J|looking at the CBR, we're not |ooking at
replacing the $5 billion or $7 billion that we owe the
CBR. If we had a structure that was putting that
noney back into the CBR, we would be talking about
sonething quite different. | haven't heard that from
anyone in the legislature - that we are reconstituting
and "re-depositing" noney into the CBR in any
significant anount. So, it seens to ne that we have
to listen to our prudent investors who are comng to
us and saying that they don't figure a five-year tine
horizon when we have a shorter-than-five-year use of
that fund horizon, currently ....

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noted that M. Boutin is not the
investor - that's not what he does. He noted that the commttee
has not seen forward-|ooking projections. He said, "If we're
here in a fiduciary capacity, |ooking at what the expectations
are going to be for the subaccount as opposed to the main

account, | think we ought to see what the forward-Iooking
projections are." He said it is not prudent or fiscally
responsible for the legislature to take a backwards | ook at the
past three year's biggest bear markets seen in "our lifetine"

and nake a determination that that's what the long-term effects
are going to be.

Nunber 2780

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 2, 2004



MR. BOUTIN stated that the comm ssioner of [the Departnent of
revenue] is the fiduciary for "this account.” The projection
that is used to decide how the account will be used is the fal
revenue forecast. He noted that in several weeks there wll be
a spring revenue forecast. He said, "The information that we
have, | have shared with you, and | think it's all here."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said there has been sone indication that an
i mmedi ate effective date woul d be beneficial.

Nunmber 2826

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH noved [Anendnent 1], to nodify Section 4 [on
page 2, line 3], to nake the bill effective immediately.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH noted that Representative Berkowitz had
obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he doesn't see "the energency in
an imedi ate effective date." He strongly suggested that if an
effective date is chosen, it should be to a trigger point in the
CBR, not tied to a "date certain.”

Nunmber 2875

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH offered his understanding that if an Act has an
i mredi ate effective date, it takes a two-thirds vote of the
| egislature [to pass]; however, if it doesn't have an inmediate
effective date, it would take effect 90 days after passage.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said, "After the signature.”

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH noted that even if the imediate effective date
failed, "this" effective date would effect sooner than if there
were no effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded, "If the effective date
prevails on the floor.™

Nunber 2918

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted, "Part of what we're trying to do is
to allow an orderly phase-out of these longer-term

i nvestnents." He stated that he is not sure how the effective
date will influence that.
Number 2927

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 2, 2004



MR. BOUTIN said the departnent would direct the manager to begin

"getting out as they see appropriate.” He indicated that the
managenent fees for fiscal year (FY) 2005 were not included.
Even if the bill is enacted, he said, the departnment would still

not be through with its managenent fee responsibility by July 1
and would have to find the noney for approxinmately 60 days "as
we take her out of it."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH said it sounds Ilike the departnment could
i npl enent its nmanagenment responsibilities, whether the effective
date is imediate or July 1.

MR. BOUTI N concurr ed.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH wi t hdr ew Anmendnent 1

Nunber 2975

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "What precludes you from
directing the fund managers to do just that anyway?"

[ Not on tape, but taken fromthe Gavel to Gavel recording on the

Internet, was M. Boutin's response as follows: "Well, as we
understand existing statute, we have this ... sub fund invested
at a five-year tinme horizon, which suggests to us nostly equity.
And so, we believe that precludes us from doing ... now what
this bill would allow "]

TAPE 04-25, SIDE B
Number 2959

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL turned to [page 1, line 11, Section 2 of
the bill], which shows that [AS 37.10.430(c)] would be repeal ed.
AS 37.10.430(c) read as foll ows:

(c) A special subaccount is established in the
budget reserve fund (art. |IX, sec. 17, Constitution of
the State of Al aska). Money in the subaccount shall
be invested to yield higher returns than mght be
feasible to obtain with other noney in the budget

reserve fund. In establishing or nodifying the
i nvest ment policy for t he subaccount in t he
constitutional budget reserve fund, the conm ssioner
of revenue shall assunme that those funds will not be
needed for at least five years. I ncone earned on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- March 2, 2004



noney in the subaccount shall be retained in the
subaccount by the departnent.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL offered his understanding that [that
statute] is a directive that states that the departnment shall

assunme that the funds wll not be needed for at Ileast five
years. He noted that if it is not repealed, the directive would
remai n. He added, "So, that would definitely change your

managenment style.”
MR. BOUTIN said he believes that's certainly true.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG turned to a one-page nenorandum
included in the conmttee packet, from Tam Cook [director of

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services]. It is a legal opinion
[regarding Section 1 of the bill]. He indicated that he had
spoken with M. Boutin about the nenorandum Representati ve

Gruenberg stated that he sees no need for Section 1, because
"you have that authority anyway."

Nunmber 2916
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Amendnent 2, which woul d
strike Section 1 of the bill [and renunber the other sections

accordingly].

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH note that [Section 1] would be unnecessary if
Section 2 is enacted.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that it's unnecessary anyway.
MR. BQUTI N concurr ed.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to Amendnent 2.
He clarified Amendnent 2.

Nunmber 2865

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH obj ected to Anendnent 2 for di scussion purposes.
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, in response to a question from
Representative Coghill, clarified that Section 1 is found on

page 1, lines 5-10 of HB 422.

Nunber 2844

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 2, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH wi t hdrew hi s objection. He asked if there was
further objection.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a title change woul d be required.
Number 2831

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he would allow the bil
drafter to change the title, if necessary.

CHAI R  WEYHRAUCH, in response to Representative Seaton's
question, said, "It my, depending on how discussion goes on
this anendnent.”

Nunber 2820

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "Part of my anmendnent is to
authorize any title change necessary."

Nunber 2812

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked again if there was any objection to
adopting Anmendnent 2 |[with the authorization for a title
change]. There being none, it was so ordered.

Nunber 2789

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH noved to adopt Amendnent 3 [AS 37.10.430(c),
with handwitten changes], as foll ows:

(c) Money in the budget reserve fund (art. |X, sec
17, constitution of +the State of Alaska) nay be
invested to vyield higher returns than mght be
feasible to obtain with other noney in the budget
reserve fund. In establishing or nodifying the
investnment policy for noney in the constitutional
budget reserve fund, the comm ssioner of revenue shal
assunme that those funds nay be needed to neet cash
flow needs and prudent financial nanagenent of the
state's budget.

Number 2768
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ected. He pointed out that the fund

is not all noney, but is also nade up of equities and bonds, for
exanpl e.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 2, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH suggested that the word "fund" could be used
i nstead of the word "noney".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d, "Yeah, it would be the CBR fund."

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH read the Anmendnent 3, as anmended, to incorporate
t he foregoi ng suggestion, as foll ows:

The  budget reserve fund (art. I X, sec. 17,
Constitution of the State of Al aska) nay be invested
to yield higher returns than mnmight be feasible to
obtain wth other noney in the budget reserve fund.
In establishing or nodifying the investnent policy for
t he constitutional budget reserve fund, t he
comm ssi oner of revenue shall assunme that those funds
may be needed to neet cash flow needs and prudent
financi al nmanagenment of the state's budget.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH st ated that that |anguage cones froma letter of
intent fromthe House Finance Commttee sponsor statenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed to the part of Anendnent 3 that
read, "yield higher returns than mght be feasible to obtain
wi th other noney in the budget reserve fund.” He suggested that
the word "noney" be changed to "assets".

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH agr eed. He asked if there was further
di scussi on on Anmendnent 3, [as anended].

Nunmber 2699

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to adopt another anmendnent to
Amendnent 3, to change the words "may be" to "shall be".

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG of fered his understandi ng that that was
the intent of the original [AS 37.10.430(c)].

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH obj ected for purposes of discussion. He opined,
"I think we want to optimze returns so that we can neet the
state's budget, while getting a reasonable return on investnent.
And that |leaves us a |lot nore discretionary with the managers of
the fund and their fiduciary duty, as opposed to tying their
hands by ... giving thema ... specific directive ...."

REPRESENTATIVE HOLM said it seenms to him that "we're" not
particularly interested in getting the greatest investnent, but

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 2, 2004



rather in making the fund liquid. He posited that "shall" would
defeat the purpose of what the bill is trying to acconpli sh.

Nunber 2614
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d:

| disagree with agreeing that the shorter-term and
| onger-term alignnments within the departnent of the
managenent of those funds is where that should be;
that if we are in a situation where there is nore
noney in the CBR and revenues project, say, [an]
ei ght-year horizon at sone tinme, then it's perfectly
|l ogical of them to do it. So | think the "may" is
(indisc. - overlapping conversation).

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH requested that Representative Berkowitz w thdraw
hi s anendnment so that the commttee could adopt [Anmendnent 3, as
anended], at which point, he suggested, Representative Berkowtz
could "anend to add the 'shall'."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he woul d do that.
Number 2533

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked if there was further objection to
[ Amendnment 3, as anended].

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ obj ect ed.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH, in response to a request for clarification from
Representative Seaton, read the second half of [Anmendnent 3, as
anended] .

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed to "the conm ssioner of revenue
shall assune that those funds". He suggested that "funds”
shoul d be changed to "assets".

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH agreed to the change for pur poses  of
consistency. He said, "I'lIl take that as a friendly anendnent."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about Chair Wyhrauch's choi ce of
the term "cash flow needs". He asked if there m ght be other
needs, as well as cash flow needs, that the commttee should
i ncl ude. He al so remarked that he thinks the "special account™
shoul d be kept.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 2, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he agrees with the elimnation of the
subaccount and allowi ng the departnent to invest prudently. He
mentioned the structure and the tinme horizon. He said he thinks
the commttee needs to "take a look at this and get it
structurally correct.”

Nunber 2451

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that Anmendnent 3, [as anended], and HB
422 woul d be set asi de.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ said it's clear at this point that he
is an advocate of the subaccount, but it seens that the "primary
rub against it has to do with the five-year |ook forward, and
that's the of fendi ng sentence.”

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH told M. Boutin that although this process seens
frustrating, it wll save tinme on the House floor.

Nunber 2424

MR. BOUTIN stated that he doesn't see the utility in having a
subaccount in the CBR at this stage. He noted that "all of this
noney i s invested under the prudent investor rule.”

Nunber 2407

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that HB 422 was heard and hel d.

HB 466- PERVANENT FUND | NVESTMENTS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 156.]
Nunber 2383

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 466, "An Act relating to investnents of Al aska
per manent fund assets; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunmber 2365

ROBERT D. STORER, Executive Director, Alaska Pernmanent Fund
Corporation (APFC), Departnent of Revenue, stated that the
departnment is held to the prudent investor rule. He said the
permanent fund "has an extra layer"; in addition to the prudent
investor rule, there is a statutory list that defines what my
be invested in. He indicated that the list includes one clause

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 2, 2004



that "gives a little additional flexibility.” He noted that the
nodern prudent investor rule started with the enactnent of [the
Enpl oyee Retirenment and Incone Security Act of 1974] (ERISA).
He explained that although ERI SA has to do with private pension
pl ans and corporations, everyone uses ERI SA where applicable in
regard to public funds. M. Storer read selections from [29
US C 1104 - Fiduciary Duties], which read in part as follows:

(a) Prudent man standard of care

(1)

Subject to sections 1103(c) and (d), 1342, and
1344 of this title, a fiduciary shall discharge his
duties wth respect to a plan solely in the interest
of the participants and beneficiaries and

(B)

with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence
under the circunstances then prevailing that a prudent
man acting in a like capacity and famliar with such
matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a
| i ke character and with |ike ains;

(O

by diversifying the investnents of the plan so as
to mnimze the risk of large |osses, unless under the
circunstances it is clearly prudent not to do so;

MR. STORER said that although it was typical in the 70s for a
public fund to have a statutory list defining what investnents
can be nmde, currently wvirtually all public funds have
elimnated the statutory list and "just follow the prudent
i nvestor guideline."

Nunber 2186

MR. STORER directed the commttee's attention to a [six-page]
handout [included in the commttee packet], entitled, "Al aska
Per manent Fund." He noted that pages two and three of the
handout show all the tines that the |egislature has expanded the
investnment flexibility and given the [APFC] nore latitude to
achieve its investnent goals. He indicated his understanding

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 2, 2004



that it is a "msstatenent” on the bottom of page three that it
reads that HB 156 was sponsored by the Senate Finance Committee
in 1999. Not wi t hstanding that, he highlighted that paragraph

whi ch read as foll ows:

HB 156 allowed the Fund to |everage real estate

i nvestnents and increased asset allocation limt for
stocks to 55 percent of the total narket value of the
Fund. HB 156 also created the "basket clause"” that

allows up to 5 percent of the Fund to be invested in
alternative investnents or to be applied to existing
asset allocations to expand their limts. In
addition, HB 156 allowed the Permanent Fund to be the
sole owner of any real estate property, regardl ess of
val ue.

MR. STORER noted that page four of the handout shows the history
of the fund's various asset allocations. For exanple, he noted
that during the early 70s and 80s, the permanent fund was
invested exclusively in fixed incone securities, "even though
it's along termfund.” He revealed that he began working with
the APFC in May of 1983, and in June of that year, the [APFC
funded its first "equity managers.” He remarked that as of late
1987 the fund was invested in only about 13 percent in the U S.
equity market alone and the [APFC] did not have perm ssion to
invest in the international equity nmarket. He stated, "What you
see ... right now in the asset allocation is slightly nore
conservative than other public funds, but a mature fund that
constructs their portfolios, essentially, the way nost public
funds invest their noney."

Nunber 2061

MR. STORER said HB 466 proposes an increase in investnent
flexibility. The changes, he noted, will potentially allow the
[APFC] to increase its returns and to neet future needs in terns
of increasing diversification, as well as to inplenent
strategies nore efficiently at a Ilower cost and address
contenporary needs as they occur.

MR. STORER revealed that next week the [APFC] w Il propose a
change in its asset allocation, which is sonmething it does every
March after a review of the capital market in the beginning of

the year. He turned to [a one-page handout included in the
comm ttee packet], entitled "Fund's asset allocation and contro
bands.” He explained that the colum of nunbers on the left is

the target number - for exanple, 37 percent U S. equity market,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- March 2, 2004



while the colum of nunbers on the right shows bands - for
exanple, plus or mnus 7 percent. He explained that the [APDC
tries to create targets and then create "bands around those
targets.” The corporation does not want to balance "a lot,"
because that can result in creating transaction costs; however,
it does want to "discipline it mechanically,” which "forces you
to rebal ance.”

Nunber 1922

MR. STORER stated that the Septenber quarter of 2002 was the
worst quarter in the history of the permanent fund, wth a
negative 7.5 percent rate of return due primarily to a
pl umreti ng stock market, which forced the [APFC] to add about
$750 mllion in the equity market to "get back closer to
target." He added, "W got permission from the board around
October 10. | think we mssed the bottom of the bear market by
about four days and so we captured very high returns.” He noted
that "this was not any special insight on what was going on in
the bear market," but was an exanple of how a disciplined
approach works. He stated that his point in bringing this up is
that "after four years of study, we're about to inplenent sone
strategies that will use the basket clause.™

Number 1861
MR. STORER conti nued as foll ows:

W are ... banging up agai nst our statutory
limtations very soon. ... That nmeans if the equity
mar ket continues - if these strategies that we ...
enploy wusing the basket clause work - we wll be
forced to liquidate the assets. Not because the
capital markets tell us to do [so0], not because our
advisors are saying we need to l|iquidate or take
profits or redirect that noney. W wll be forced to
| i qui date because statutes will not allow us to gain
the benefits of the ... full rising market. So, there
is a big negative, | believe, to our statutory
limtations, which forces us to take potential gain
off the table, because of statutory limtations, not
what the financial markets are telling us.

Number 1794

MR, STORER turned attention to the last page of the of the
previously noted six-page handout, which addresses potenti al

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 2, 2004



questi ons. He noted that one question may be, "WII vyou
take on too much risk?" He continued:

W've all said we have this target [of] hitting a 5
percent real rate of return over tine, and we're

confortable nmaking that statenent. But what if, to
achi eve a hi gher rate of return, C our
constitutional anendnent doesn't pass and we, one way
or another, ... believe we should strive for a higher
rate of return ... and accept nore risk than is
prudent?" And that is a risk. You can't say, "That
will never happen, it has never happened, | see no
evidence it will happen.”

Il ... have worked with about every trustee of the
permanent fund with the exception of about four in the
begi nni ng. C l"ve worked with every executive
director. l"ve worked for or wth every chief
investnment officer [of] the Al aska Permanent Fund, and
Il wll tell you, in the history of the permanent fund,
there has never been an inclination of striving for
too much ri sk. When you becone a fiduciary and have
responsibility of managing the fund, it's inherent in
the process that you take your responsibility very,
very seriously, and so there's no history - no
suggestion - that the permanent fund woul d be prepared
to reach too far for a return.

Nunber 1700
How will the board of trustees use this flexibility?
That becones a tougher question. One is obviously

because [of] the statutory limtations; we would use
it to allow our investnents [to] rise to what we hope
are their potential. As | noted at the beginning of
ny presentation, we're trying to set the pernmnent
fund up to neet future flexibility, and so there's a
"nonpredi ctive" elenment about how you would use it.

If you ask ne right now what [we would] |ook at, one
of course is being able to increase our returns by
|l etting our w nners continue on. W mght |ook at
sone high yield. High yield is: the pejorative term
is "junk bonds." There's really two categories of
high yields; you can really divide a line between the
two. ...There is a category of high yield that's very

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- March 2, 2004



close to investnent-grade corporate debt. They' ve
wor ked out their problens and they are in the process
of probably being upgraded and becone investnent
debts. That's a nore conservative approach, if that's
not an oxynoron. Then there's the other, where you're
taking bigger bets on conpanies that have huge
probl ems and then you expect equity-like returns. We

may, over the next year - and |'ve not posed this
guestion with the board - but we may start taking a
| ook at the nore conservative approach. Be m ndf ul
that we will educate ourselves for as nuch as a year
or two years on a subject before we discard it or nake
sense [of it]. As | noted, we got perm ssion for the
basket clause in 1999. W are only now, after years

of st udy, beginning to inplenent sone  of t he
strategi es that use the basket clause. So, when | say

something like that, I'm saying this is sonething
we nmay eval uate.

Nunber 1549

MR. STORER turned to the question of derivatives. He expl ai ned
that derivatives are financial instrunments where "their return
is derived from sonme other investnent instrunment.” For exanple,
he noted that a nmeasure for large-cap equities is the S&P
[ Standard & Poors] 500 index. He noted that there are futures
and forward contracts that base their return on the performance
of the S&P 500 index. He continued as follows:

W use derivatives now, in a sense. W will hedge
currency. Wien we bank an international investnment we
may hedge that currency risk before we buy the

currency to pay off the security. Qur nmanagers do
t hat . So, there are any nunber of ways to use
derivatives; they all aren't all bad. When you see

derivatives and you see negative headlines, )
typically it's because they've used derivatives for
| everaging the portfolio in a rather significant
manner, and it's not the use of the derivative so nuch
as increasing the risk by using the | everage.

Nunmber 1456
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked M. Storer if the basket clause got its

nane when it was adopted in 1999, or was it a term that "just
grew. "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 2, 2004



MR STORER offered his belief that it becane a term of art
"during that process."”

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH said when he hears the word "basket," he thinks
of a basket used in a grocery store and "picking and choosing
smal | amounts to go throughout the line." He asked M. Storer
"I's that how the public would view what a basket clause is, in
terms of the larger scale when you're dealing with investnents
in the permanent fund?"

MR. STORER nentioned diversification. He stated, "So, even if
one gets the ability through the basket clause to nmake

investnments, we are still driven by diversification. And our
point would be to fill that basket with a bunch of diversified
options that would not put risk in any (indisc. - overlapping
voi ces)." In response to a followup question from Chair

Weyhrauch, he confirmed that "we're asking to nake the basket
bigger,"” or to increase the flexibility.

Nunmber 1365

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if part of [the intent] is to be
able to maintain assets that have appreciated and may "go up
nore." He clarified that he is trying to figure out "the 15
percent."” He asked, "Does that mean that the funds could then
take international equities to 31 percent, with the 15 percent,
less the 16 percent, currently, if the fund thought

international assets are going up and ... we've had a good run
in our investnents here and we want them to continue, so we'll
use our authority to increase ... that allocation to 30
percent ?"

MR. STORER responded that that technically - enphasis on the

word "technically" - could be correct. However, he stated that
it would also be unlikely, keeping in mnd that the goal is a
fully diversified portfolio. He revealed that next week the
[APDC] w | recoomend increasing the international equity
allocation from 16 to 18 percent. He added, "In fact, | think
we're nore |ike 17 [percent] as it now stands. W' re also using
parts of the basket clause.”™ He continued as foll ows:

So, the fundanental question would be, "If one used

the entire basket clause to increase a single asset

cl ass, woul d it still neet t he rul es of

diversification and [the nobdern] prudent [investor

rul el ?" | am well aware of many public funds that

have been invested in excess of 25 percent in the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- March 2, 2004



international equity nmarkets, but as a practica
matter, that would be unlikely that we would use what
| call the privilege of an increased basket clause in
any single thing. ... As [of] now we aren't going to
use it in a nunber of options that wll behave
differently in different market environnents.

Number 1234

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for exanples of "what these other
new i nvest nents" are.

Nunmber 1168

MR. STORER responded as foll ows:

As noted, we do have a 55 percent limtation in the
stock market; t hat is unique in public funds
t hroughout the country where you follow the prudent
i nvestor rule. There are no limtations whatsoever.
So, | would like to preface ny response by saying that
even with the increased basket clause, our constraints
would still <constrain us to being one of the nore
conservative public funds in the country. So, even if
we increase it, we're still not going to have the
ability to take as much risk as other public funds
may. And of course, risk 1s not necessarily
pej orati ve; you should be rewarded for bei ng

conpensated for that risk

As an imrediate objective we wll probably use the
basket clause to not be forced to sell stocks in the
equities if we exceed the statutory linmt, because

we would apply ... that basket clause to the
additional equities. C W don't believe that is
bad at all. What we're doing is we're letting ... the

mar kets define when to rebalance, we're not letting

arbitrary constraints tell us when to apply. So,
one imedi ate use would be sinply to benefit from the
appreciation of the markets and not be forced to sell
for arbitrary reasons.

[ Regarding] the balance of it, we would ... educate
ourselves on any nunber of things. | nmentioned an
exanple - potentially high yield. We've | ooked at it
nodest | y. We have | ooked at private equity and we're
starting a nodest programin private equity, which, by

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- March 2, 2004



definition, that's "nonpublicly" traded investnents.

It's a diversified portfolio that could have sone
venture capital, some buyouts in it. Typically you
expect to earn about 5 percent return in excess of the
publicly traded markets [when] you do sonething Ilike
t hat .

Number 0997

MR. STORER nentioned absolute return strategy and hedge fund.
He said that he is about to reconmmend sonething that's kind of
uni que. He continued as foll ows:

I"m introducing, for the first tine ever, ... a pilot
program These are very sophisticated investnent
approaches; we've studied it for well over a year.
And there's a lot nore to be learned, but the only way
| think we can |earn beyond here is live. And so, |I'm
reconmendi ng that we invest a nodest anpunt in a pilot
absolute return strategy. W're going to define it as

very |low risk. Qur objective is to have ... targeted
risk that is equal to or less than the bond market.
That'll be part of the criteria. - |  think
everyone in this roomw ||l agree that sonetines things
exi st in governnent perpetually, and to nake it truly
a pilot program |'m recommending a sunset clause

so that the program will expire within 30 nonths, so
that not only by policy it will die, but our contracts
with the experts will expire in 36 nonths, as well

So, the only way we can continue forward on that one
is to take the knowl edge we've | earned and vote it up,
rather than it just [becom ng] perpetual. So, that is
anot her  use, and 1'd like to think that's a
conservative approach to a very sophi sti cat ed
i nvestment strategy. So, those are sort of on the
i mredi ate tabl e.

| spoke last week in front of [the Senate State

Affairs Standing Comrittee], and |I did the cornucopia
of opportunities, nost of which | don't personally
agree nmke any sense. When people invest in tinber

it usually neans tinber in Indonesia or overseas. And
can you imagine investing in tinber in a small way and
then [ending] up with an environnmental nightmare in a
country where you have no control. So, |I'm giving you
a bad exanple, in rmy opinion. So, we have to work
t hrough all these things.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- March 2, 2004



Number 0760

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said he would quarrel with M. Storer's

assertion that the Ilist forces conservative investnents.
Conversely, he said it seenms to him to force inprudent
I nvest nent s. He said sonetines there mght energe conflicts
between the list in Title 37 and the explanation of what a

prudent investor should do in Title 13. He said, "Wen you're
forced to sell assets because you're going up against the upper
limts, that's not conservative ...."

Number 0740

MR. STORER concurred with Representative Berkowitz's statenent.
He said that he has been "at or near" the permanent fund and has
| ong thought that the statutory |ist could becone so restrictive
that "it belongs in the Smthsonian rather than as an investnent
tool." He stated, "W have not suffered, to date, but | think

that we need to create a flexibility to manage the fund
successfully in the future.”

Nunmber 0682

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG i ndicated that he nmay be offering an
amendnent that would elimnate the [limtations] and allow the
board to just invest under the prudent person rule. He asked
Chair Weyhrauch if the bill would not be noved out of conmttee
today, because he indicated that he has questions to ask to
whi ch he would |i ke answers at the next neeting.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH stated that it is not his intention to npbve the
bill today.

Nunber 0487

RONALD W LORENSEN, Attorney at Law, Sinpson, Tillinghast,
Sorensen & Longenbaugh, P.C., told the cornmittee that that firm
is outside counsel to the APFC He stated that he has worked
wth M. Storer and the board on the proposed |egislation before
the conmmttee. He announced that he would limt his testinony
to addressing the changes sought in the bill. Both sections, he
not ed, woul d make anendnments to AS 37.13.120. He stated that AS
37.13 is the chapter that deals with the APFC and is described

as the legal or statutory list. Section 120 is approximtely
four pages long, he noted, with subsection (g) setting out the
l egal list of those investnents that the [APFC] is authorized to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- March 2, 2004



i nvest in. O her subsections within Section 120 provide either
limtations or guidance with respect to the investnents of the
fund. For exanple, he said, subsection (a) is the provision
that deals with the prudent investor rule as it applies to the
fund, while subsection (k) is the subsection that created the
basket clause in 1999. Subsection (k) would be anmended by the
bill to add references to two additional subsections wthin
Section 120, as exceptions to the operation of the basket
cl ause. Those additions are subsections (h) and (j).

MR. LORENSEN stated that subsection (h) would prohibit the
corporation from investing in futures contracts, except in
specific circunstances. He continued as foll ows:

That limtation, although it makes sense in the schene

of the existing statutory [|ist, creates sone
difficulties in ternms of flexibility, with respect to
t he basket cl ause. C The exanple | have nost in

mnd is in the area of hedge funds, where hedge funds
may invest, as part of their strategy, sonme portion of
the funds under managenent in various forns of futures

contracts. This limtation page would prohibit the
basket clause from being used for those kinds of hedge
fund investnents. It certainly was not the intention

at the tinme that the basket clause was proposed to the
| egislature that that limtation exist to apply to the
basket clause; it was just, basically, sonething that
hadn't been anticipated or perceived as a problem at
the tine.

MR. LORENSEN stated that subsection (j) is a provision in
Section 120 that states that the [APFC] may not invest in bonds,
basically, where the interest paynment on a bond has been
defaulted in the last five years. And again, that's a prudent
rule, with respect to fixed incone as a class of investnment, but
it creates difficulties when you' re talking about alternative
forms of investnment, such as high yield investnents, which M.
Storer's also described as what sone people call, "junk bonds,"
where you're |ooking for a higher return. And the reason you're
| ooking for a higher return is because you are investing in a
cl ass of bonds which is nore risky, and frequently ... that risk
is denonstrated by the fact that interest paynments have not been
made within the last five years.

[ The commttee took a brief at-ease.]

TAPE 04-26, SIDE A

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- March 2, 2004



Number 0001
MR. LORENSEN conti nued as foll ows:

So, adding [subsection] (j) in Section 2 of the bill
to the exceptions for the operation of the basket
clause, would permt a portion of the assets of the
permanent fund to be invested in certain alternative
i nvestnents, which use - as a part of their investnent
strategy - investing in bonds, which have a higher
risk of default, but also the counter veiling
consideration is that they have a higher potential for
an increased return.

MR. LORENSEN turned to the other change proposed in Section 2 of

the bill, which is to increase the Iimt on the size of the
basket clause from5 percent to 15 percent. He noted that there
had already been discussion on the issue. Section 1, he
speci fied, addresses the potential restrictions on the
investnent ability of the permanent fund in alternative
i nvest nents. M. Lorensen paraphrased Section 1 of the bill,

whi ch read as foll ows:

*Section 1. AS 37.13.120(e) is anended to read:

(e) The corporation my not borrow noney or
guarantee from principal of the fund the obligations
of others except as provided in this subsection. Wth
respect to [REAL PROPERTY] investnents of the fund,
the corporation may, through an entity in which the
investnent is made, borrow noney if the borrowing is
W t hout recourse to the corporation and the fund.

MR. LORENSEN explained that the idea is as long as the fund
itself is protected by sone intervening legal entity, it is
currently permssible "for real estate only" to nmake investnents
that mght involve borrowing noney as part of the investnent
strategy. He added, "And, of course, there we're talking about
| everage, basically.” He continued as foll ows:

Now that we Jlook at various available forns of
alternative investnents, we see that certain kinds of
hedge funds, and potentially also certain Kkinds of

private equity funds, do - as a part of their
investnment strategy - invest ... through Ilimted
partnerships. |It's never the [APFC] itself that would

be the investor, but the [APFC] would purchase an
interest in a limted partnership, for instance. And

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -32- March 2, 2004



the limted partnerships, again, my enter into
borrowing for |everage purposes, as a part of the
i nvest ment strategy. And so, here the recomrendation
is sinmply to delete the ... limtation on rea
property and nake it available for any kind of
investnment of the fund, so long as it is done through
a separate legal entity and so long as there is no
recourse back agai nst the fund.

Nunmber 0356

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how 15 percent was chosen in Section 2
of the bill

MR LORENSEN deferred to M. Storer.

Nunber 0419

MR. STORER replied that "we" want as much investnent flexibility
as possible and the constitution [allows] investnents as
designated by law, which would be 15 percent. He added, "I

woul d note that if you | ooked at other public funds, it's silent
by virtue of their rules. Their rules would be 100 percent, not
15 percent. So, 15 percent still [is a] far nore conservative
constraint than others.”

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the 15 percent was "pushing the
envel ope" or whether it was "still plenty of room"”

MR. STORER responded that he personally doesn't think it's
pushing the envelope at all. Conversely, he opined it's the
maxi mum that "we" can use and still fall within the direction
that the constitution allows. He observed that where he has
seen public funds that have no constraints, those funds are
still managed in well-diversified portfolios. He said he
doesn't see undue risk in being allowed that extra flexibility.

Number 0610

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Wiat do you nean by 'not
wi t hstandi ng t hese ot her subsections' ?"

Nunmber 0652

MR. LORENSEN replied as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 33- March 2, 2004



"Notwi thstanding”, in this context neans that even
though these limtations exist, they do not apply to
t he basket cl ause.

Nunmber 0670

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, indicating [the |anguage to be deleted
regarding] real estate in Section 1 of the bill, asked, "Is that
because they're real estate nortgages?”

MR. LORENSEN answered that he thinks real estate nortgages are
probably the best exanple of how real estate investnents are

made by the permanent fund. He noted that the pernmanent fund
actually has "a fairly low percentage of its assets in real
estate that is actually |leveraged or is borrowed.”™ He said sone

of the real estate properties that are purchased by the [APFC
do have a borrow ng, |everage, or nortgage conponent to them
and "this was inserted in 1999 to nake it clear that that was
permssible, so long as it was done through a separate title-
hol ding entity."

Number 0750

MR. STORER added that the [APFC] |everaged its "direct real
estate portfolio approxinmately 15 percent; it's an increnenta
return." He stated that that's still conservative by virtually

al | standards. For exanple, he proffered that publicly traded
real estate investnment trusts "tend to run about 40-60 percent
| everage.” He offered his understanding that nost public funds
actually use nore leverage - particularly in the last few years
with the lower interest rate.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, "lIs that, basically, the futures
mar ket that we're talking about, whereas real estate is nore
nor t gaged?"

MR. LORENSEN answered no. He continued as foll ows:

Maybe the best exanple has nothing to do with either
nortgages or real estate, but is in the area of

private equity, where ... there are |everaged buyouts
and that sort of investnent activity as part of the
strategy. And so, there will be a borrow ng conponent

in these private equity transactions, which is - again
- nothing to do with real estate, specifically, but
just is a way to finance the underlying transaction.
And so, to the extent that a particular private equity

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 34- March 2, 2004



i nvestnment involves a |everage aspect, we would like

to see this language in place to nake it clear that

that's permssible. Private equity is now permssible

to the extent of the cap created by the basket cl ause.
Number 0903

MR. STORER added that "we" view "this" as a cleanup to the
original intent of the basket clause. He said he hopes the
comm ttee agrees.

MR. LORENSEN concurr ed.

Nunber 0948

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 466 was heard and hel d.

HB 423- TAXI CAB DRI VER LI ABILITY

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 68.]
Nunber 0960

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 423, "An Act relating to accidents involving the
vehicle of a person wunder the influence of an alcoholic
beverage; and providing for an effective date.™

Nunmber 0985

JIM SHNE JR, Staff to Representative Tom Anderson, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 423 on behalf of Representative
Ander son, sponsor. M. Shine read his testinony as foll ows:

House Bill 423 is a “Good Samaritan” bill for taxicab
operators who transport intoxicated persons or who
drive an intoxicated person’s notor vehicle to their
hone or another directed location. This |egislation
woul d create a deterrent for those who m ght otherw se
drive inpaired if unable to find an alternative nethod
of transportation. It grants taxicab conpanies |egal
immunity in the event that an accident occurs, except
in the case of reckl essness, gross negligence, or

i ntentional m sconduct.

MR SHINE, in response to a question from Chair Wyhrauch,
confirmed that the order of commttee referral was reversed from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 35- March 2, 2004



how it shows on the bill; therefore, the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee is the first commttee of referral and the
House Judiciary Standing Conmittee is the second. He conti nued
reading his testinony as foll ows:

There are tinmes when Al askans find thenselves in an

"end-of -evening dilemm" - they are over the .08 bl ood
al cohol limt and shouldn’t drive, but are worried and
reluctant to |leave their car unattended overnight. HB

423 resolves this dilemma by allowing a taxicab
operator to drive an intoxicated person hone while a
second operator follows them honme in their vehicle.

This legislation would allow the intoxicated person
and his or her vehicle to get hone safely wthout the
taxi cab operator fearing liability. HB 423 pronotes
responsi bl e behavior and encourages people to do the
right thing and not drive while intoxicated.

Wil e annual alcohol-related traffic fatalities have
decreased by nore than 33 percent over the past few
decades, the latest statistics show a recent increase
with nore than 17,400 people killed and nore than half
a mllion others injured in alcohol-related crashes in
2002 in the United States. Al aska had 87 traffic
deaths, of which 35 were alcohol-related, [which
equated to] 40 percent in 2002. The previous year,
there were 47 alcohol-related deaths out of the 89
deat hs, which equated to 53 percent.

In order for this program to be successful, cab
conpanies and |iquor establishnments mnust work and
comuni cate cl osely. These establishments wll
inplenent the following strategies and policies:
Place signs near pay phones, direct lines to cab
conpani es, and ot her conspi cuous areas  of t he

establishment, such as restroons and exits; train the
establishment staff on the availability of this
program and how to inform patrons, and how to
i npl enent t he process; make public service
announcenents at closing time to help influence
patrons to use the program pay a portion of the cab
fare cost agreed upon by establishnments and program
of ficials; and track program wusage to assess
effectiveness to pronote and or inprove the program

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 36- March 2, 2004



MR. SHINE noted that the Checker Cab Conpany in Anchorage has
set some guidelines for the program He shared those witten
gui del i nes, which read as foll ows [sonme punctuation changed]:

A mnimum of six designated taxi drivers on duty every
night to be available for this program

A flat $40 fee per car delivery nade from any |icensed
establishnment to one destination in the Anchorage
area, for both the patron and his/her vehicle.

Every car delivery that is done will be logged into a
| ogbook in the dispatch office, to ease in the
tracking of the progress of this program and how wel |
it is working to benefit the community.

Training of taxicab drivers and dispatch enployees so
designated drivers wll be able to cover the car
deliveries safely.

Promote, with all the taxi drivers' help, how this
program is available to all custonmers heading to any
drinking establishnent in the Anchorage area. It is a
convenient way to enjoy all [licensed] establishnents
wi thout worrying about retrieving a vehicle the next
day.

MR. SHI NE continued reading his testinony as follows:

This service will be free to the consuner. The cab
conpanies will receive $40 for each trip they nake
It's a reduced flat rate for transportati on anywhere
in the Anchorage bow area. This legislation is
supported by Modther's Against Drunk Drivers (MADD),
and there is a letter of support in your bill packet.

This bill 1is identical to House Bill 68, which
unani nously passed the House in the 22nd |egislature
by a vote of 37-0. In the Senate, it passed through

the [Senate Transportation Standing Commttee], but
stalled in the [Senate Judiciary Standing Conmittee]
and was never heard.

MR. SHINE noted that Darwin Biwer was available to testify. He

said he would answer questions from the commttee, but would
defer any technical questions to M. Biwer.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -37- March 2, 2004



Nunber 1256

DARW N BI VER, Board Menber, Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers
Association (CHARR), explained the formation of HB 423, stating
that it was a concept brought forth by two CHARR board nenbers,
Rod Pfleiger and John Pattee. He said that HB 423 was anot her
exanple of the liquor industry trying to pronote safe driving;
CHARR had supported previous, simlar legislation that stalled
in the Senate. He said that HB 423 was a "housekeeping" bill,
so the Iliability [insurance] for taxicab conpanies would be
| ower . He reiterated that there would be no costs to the
consuner with the passage of HB 423; those costs would be [paid]
by the |iquor conpanies and [through] donations.

Number 1395

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM first conplinmented CHARR, specifically in
Anchorage, for bringing forth HB 423. He indicated that he had
W tnessed the successful inplenentation of a simlar process in
Canada, where a connection has been nmade between taxicab
conpani es and |iquor establishnments.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noting that [drinking and driving] is a
statewide problem and HB 423 is enacting a statew de policy,
asked M. Biwer how CHARR was interacting with the other
communities in Al aska.

MR. BIWER stated that there is a pilot program enacted in
Anchorage, and CHARR wanted to inplenent the program work the
bugs out, and then take it to other comunities within the
state.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM t hanked M. Biwer and stated that he thought
that HB 423 was a very responsible thing that establishnent
owners did to take care of the public.

Number 1509

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there was a "sunset date" on
the Anchorage pilot program and he said, if not, CHARR should
t hi nk about inplenenting one or going statewide from the start.
He al so asked who woul d bear the costs if there was an acci dent
as a result of negligence on the part of a taxi driver.

MR. BIVWER stated that he wasn't the person to talk about

i nsurance rates, but he thought that there was a representative
from Allstate Insurance that was present, who would be able to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 38- March 2, 2004



answer that question. He stated that the purpose of HB 423 is
to reduce the insurance rates for the taxicab conpanies to give
themincentive to participate in the program

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there have been any assurances
from the insurance conpanies that rates will go down wth the
passage of HB 423.

MR. BIVWER said that the rates for a taxi would be sonewhere
around $1000 a nonth if HB 423 was not passed. He cited that as
one of the reasons that HB 423 was introduced; so rates would go
down and the pilot program could be inplenented.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH cited the earlier testinony from M. Biwer, when
he said there would be no costs to the consumer, and asked what
costs were invol ved.

MR. BIVER responded that the cost would be for the cab ride and
the two cab drivers. He said that the Anchorage taxicab
conpani es have set a flat rate of $40, regardless of distance,
within the Anchorage bow area.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH asked for an annual estimate for
expenses that would be required industry-w de.

MR. BIVER said that CHARR was going to apply for federal grants,
and has had financial commtments from liquor distributors, so
there really is no fiscal note. In response to further
questions, he stated that many establishnments already bear sone
costs because they pay for cab rides for their patrons. He said
that CHARR felt that HB 423 was a better way to go about doing
t hat . He made the coment that this was a pilot program and
CHARR doesn't have all the answers to those questions yet.

Nunber 1737

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what position Frank Dahl held in
CHARR.

MR. BIVWER responded that M. Dahl is on the Board of D rectors
of Anchorage CHARR

Nunmber 1800
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that in HB 423 there was no nention

if the vehicle driven already had insurance. He stated that
this nmay be a situation where [the legislature] is giving

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 39- March 2, 2004



liability for negligence to a driver of an uninsured vehicle who
then gets into an accident. He said that it would seem |ike
there will be sone fallback to the people who are paying for the
driver. He stated that he didn't think that the |egislature was
to the point where it would grant sonmeone total immunity just to
get an intoxicated person's car hone. He stated that it is
risking a victinms injuries wthout sonmeone being Iiable. He
asked M. Biwer to think about that and address that issue when
the conmmttee next discusses HB 423.

[ HB 423 was heard and hel d. ]

ADJ OQURNMENT

Nunber 1847

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -40- March 2, 2004



